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Posted 21 Sep 04
BPA Specific/Solicitation Questions
Q:  Can we propose an additional “hot spot” OCONUS price to accommodate the special shipping and insurance costs needed to ship products into locations such as Iraq and Afghanistan?  Lisa D. Greer, TIG
A:  Yes, you may.  However you need be aware of how this may affect the attractiveness of your offer.
Q:  In regards to Guaranteed Future Minimum Discount off of GSA Price, as a small reseller offering products from a number of OEMs, may we propose different discounts for each OEM?  Lisa D. Greer, TIG
A:  Yes
Q:  Guaranteed Future Minimum Discounts - Please confirm that the requested future discounts can be different than those initially proposed as part of this solicitation.  Also, can the future discounts be differentiated by CONUS and OCONUS?  Mitch Turpyn, NCS Technologies, Inc.

A:  Yes
Q:  GFMD.  On previous BPA's we were able to offer discounts by manufacturer within each category.  We think it would be a good idea to continue that, since we are planning to offer multiple manufacturers within each category, and they will not necessarily offer the same discounts.  Marc Fertik Director, Contracts & Proposals, Westwood Computer Corporation

A:  That is acceptable.
Q:  Buying Procedures - At the July 28 DLS Industry Day the Air Force outlined procedures for the Quarterly Enterprise Buys (QEB).  Our understanding is that approximately 6% of these purchases will be targeted for small businesses under these BPA’s.  There was also limited discussion regarding procedures for purchases outside of the QEB.  It is our current understanding that:

a) Purchases for other than mainstream configurations will require a waiver.
This is true 
b) Purchases outside of the QEB will be directed to small businesses unless a waiver is obtained.

Is this understanding correct?  
Yes.

Also, it remains unclear how purchases outside of the QEB will be conducted.  For example, will they be competed among the small business BPA holders only, or among a larger group of small businesses to be determined at a later date?  Will “directed” purchases be permissible?  The Air Force supports and encourages awards to small business firms whenever the customer needs can be met.  Individual circumstances will dictate whether the Contracting Officer’s compete or execute sole source outside the QEB.

 It would be useful if the Air Force would document their intended buying procedures as part of the solicitation, including but not limited to targeted percentages, estimated quantities, etc.   Mitch Turpyn, NCS Technologies, Inc. 
A:  The suggestion, re; inclusion of targeted percentages, estimated quantities etc, in solicitations seems to be more suitable for award of contracts as opposed to agreements.  The Air Force does not consider publishing acquisition strategy in solicitations appropriate.  It would be near impossible to estimate quantities for this acquisition.   From time to time, strategies change and if included in solicitations, a modification would be necessary to update.  The Air Force has held several forums in an effort to educate industry of the proposed DLS strategy and will continue to do so as the opportunities present themselves.  

Q:  Memorandum for BPA Invitee, Page 1, Section 3 - OEM offerors are encouraged but not required to bid on all categories and remaining configurations.  If an offeror chooses not to bid on a given category or configuration at this time, will there be an opportunity to add it to their BPA at a future date assuming that the product(s) have been added to their GSA Schedule?  Mitch Turpyn, NCS Technologies, Inc.
A:  Yes.
Q:  Memorandum for BPA Invitee, Page 2, Section 4 - The subject section references Tabs A, B, and C of Attachment 1.  Tabs B and C are not included in the solicitation.  The contents intended for Tab C, Customer Usage Fee Check Report, have been included as Attachment 2.  For purposes of clarity we recommend that the references and/or pagination be corrected.  Mitch Turpyn, NCS Technologies, Inc.
A:  We have corrected the tabs and attachments to match the list of attachments on the cover letter.
Q:  Proposal Instructions, Page 2 - Would the Air Force accept electronic proposals in PDF format in lieu of Word or Excel? Mitch Turpyn, NCS Technologies, Inc.  
A:  Yes.
Q:  Reports, Attachment 1, Page 3, Section 12 - What is the difference between subsection (c) Non AFWAY sales and (e) Orders outside of AFWAY?  Mitch Turpyn, NCS Technologies, Inc.
A:  There is no difference; (e) has been deleted.
Q:  Representations and Certifications, Attachment 1, Page 3, Section 14 - The Air Force requires that the offeror provide all software with a perpetual, transferable, right-to-use license.  Our experience is that many software providers offer a perpetual license to a specific CPU, but the license is not transferable.  Microsoft’s Windows XP Professional is but one example discussed at the DLS Industry Day.  We therefore request that you remove the requirement for transferable software licenses.  Mitch Turpyn, NCS Technologies, Inc.
A:  The Government has a requirement that all software be furnished with a perpetual, transferable, right-to-use license; therefore, the requirement will not be removed.
Q:  Additional Value Added Features, Attachment 1, Page 4, Section 16.g - This section solicits the offeror’s ability to ship products from one OCONUS location to another OCONUS location to reduce shipping costs.  This appears to be in conflict with the business codes listed on Page 4 of Attachment 2 where “Performing in U.S” is specified.  It is also inconsistent with procurements that contain a preference for small businesses.  We therefore request that this requested feature be removed.  Mitch Turpyn, NCS Technologies, Inc.
A:  A contractor’s ability to ship to OCONUS facilities is considered a value added evaluation criteria that is intended to give the Government insight into an offeror’s ability to meet anticipated customer needs.   The “type of business” concern relates to the location of a company’s corporate headquarters where they are legally registered to do business.  The DLS acquisition is not reserved exclusively for small business concerns; therefore, this feature will not be removed.
Q:  Questions and Answers, Attachment 2, Page 2, Question 9 - Please be more specific regarding the use of a third party price indexing tool.  How will the tool be developed, by whom, and how will it be applied to an offeror’s pricing.  Mitch Turpyn, NCS Technologies, Inc.
A:  The third party pricing index tool will be used by the ITCC periodically to ensure competitiveness of IT product prices.  We do not consider it appropriate to divulge specifics at this time, since award has not been made.
Q:  In a teaming arrangement, would different logos on identically configured systems be OK?  Patrick Harvey, Microlan Systems, Inc.

 A:  I would think this would be something to discuss with your teaming partner.
Q:  Can an AFWAY customer put a hold on an order in production and if so would the payment terms be put on hold as well?
Patrick Harvey, Microlan Systems, Inc.

A.  The Contracting Officer is the only person authorized to “stop work” on an order.  The “stop work” provisions outline the remedy for such actions.
Selling large OEM products

Q:  After an AF customer receives a waiver to procure a non-mainstream system, are there restrictions on who they can buy from? i.e., are they required to procure from a small business or may they go directly to a Large OEM? Lisa D. Greer, TIG 

A:  Customers will be encouraged to fulfill their local (MAJCOM) small business goals by going to a small business firm in the instance to which you refer.  However, HQ SSG will not dictate acquisition strategy for any MAJCOM.
Q:  DLS documents posted by your organization states that "The recently approved Air Force Desktop, Laptop, Server (DLS) strategy anticipates a pool of seven strategic suppliers - 4 large business OEMs, 1 small business OEM and 2 small business resellers."  Question: Does this mean that no award can be made to a large business reseller?

Jim Shea, Federal Sales Manager, Toshiba America Information Systems, Inc
 A:  There will be no direct awards to large business resellers for these BPAs.
GSA Schedule partner

Q:  Would the Air Force consider an offeror as responsive if the offeror is an authorized agent on another company’s GSA Schedule?  Many companies are using this business model in order to increase their sales force and enhance their market share.  The offeror would maintain privity of contract.  Please let me know your thoughts.

Deborah Swann, Contracts Manager, TKC Integration Services, LLC

A:  The Air Force intends to award directly to GSA schedule holders. 
Q:  Concerning the Letter of Invitation for the Desktops, Laptops and Servers (DLS); is the Vendor/Reseller required to have a GSA Schedule contract?

Terran Jones, Electronic Systems Solutions

A:  Yes, the answer to this is in paragraph 1 of the invite letter.  "This is not a formal solicitation ....."but an invitation to compete for a BPA under the terms of your GSA FSS contract in accordance with FAR Subpart 8.4."" 

Industry Day Questions

Q.  Is the approximately 20% non-mainstream buying assigned to small business?

A.  We try to push them to SB through incentives, but it will not always be the case.

Q.  SB resellers reserved or set-aside?

A.  Neither.  Delivery orders will be competed among all BPA holders (including large OEMs).  Spot bid process may show preference to SB, but technical specs and delivery requirements will be the same.

Q.  No enforcement of small business manufacturing rules?

A.  FAR part 8 rules apply.

Q.  What is the advantage of having a MAJCOM sponsor you on AFWAY?

A.  Your entire catalog will be uploaded for shoppers to see

Q.  Is the BPA for QEB only?  

A.  The vast majority is, but there are other opportunities.
Q.  In addition these 7 BPA holders, are you adding BPAs?

A.  Future strategies created by the ITCC may bring about a need to change the mix of BPAs.  At the discretion of the ITCC, BPAs may be added and/or deleted during annual reviews.
Q.  Why don’t you buy 4 years of warranty?

A.  It is not cost effective.
Q.  Is there a budget line for the 4th year warranty?

A.  No.
Q.  Is partial invoicing allowable for staggered shipping?  
A.  Partial shipment invoicing may be authorized.

Q.  Storing products for staggered delivery – is product not paid for until shipped?  
A.  Payment occurs at acceptance.
Q.  Where can I find a list of AF approved CAC card readers?
A.  The AF PKI SPO approved product list will be posted on the HERBB website at the same time these Q&A’s are posted.

Q.  Do small businesses have to fulfill RFID requirements?  
A.  Right now, we accept current commercial practice for asset tagging.  We will be developing a standard at a later date.  UID may have to be implemented but there are a number of ways to do that.

Q.  Can we assume there will be only one image per base? 
A.  No, there may be more than one image per base.

Q.  What % of computers has an image loaded today?  

A. 100%.
Q.  What level of equipment does the AF want to get rid of (disposal)?

A.  It will be up to each MAJCOM to determine what they want to get rid of.

Q.  Does disposal include monitors?

A.  Yes.
Q.  Does the weight of laptops include batteries?
A.  Yes.
Q.  Is a 15” screen allowed for laptops?

A. 14” is mandatory, 15” can be offered as an added value.
Q.  Why the 2 week deadline for performance reports?  Why are they due before the proposal? 

A.  If contractor is having difficulty getting performance reports in on time, we will handle requests for extensions on an individual basis.

Q.  There are many levels of quality in computers.  The government needs to specify HD, power supply, etc.  Power supply is the source of many failures.

A.  Quality decisions are left up to the vendor; the government will evaluate the offering; the vendor will be supporting the equipment for the next 3-4 years.  Support will be expensive if it breaks a lot.

Q.  Why do you want a serial port on laptops?  
A.  The capability is still necessary – if it can be provided some other way, that’s acceptable.
Q.  Do products have to be on a GSA schedule or can they be on a partner’s schedule?

A.  Products must be on the BPA holder’s and team partner GSA schedule.  
Q.  Can the guaranteed discount be by manufacturer or does it have to be one discount for the vendor?

A.  Discounts may vary by manufacturer.
Q.  Why has partnering with Dell, HP, Gateway, MPC been prohibited?

A.  OEM’s can offer the best price on their products in QEB arena.  Teaming may occur outside of QEB process.

Q.  Can past performance include team mates?

A.  Performance needs to be prime’s.

Q.  Can any of the existing small business BPA holders compete for this requirement?

A.  Yes, provided they still qualify as a small business under NAICS 334111.

Q.  How does one register for AFWAY?  Can you register just one time?

A.  Contractors have three ways to participate on AFWay:  


1. AFWay Blanket Purchase Agreements (BPAs) are obtained by submitting a competitive proposal when an official solicitation has been released and posted to Hanscom Electronic Request for Proposal Bulletin Board (HERBB) and Federal Business Opportunities (FedbizOpps) for a requirement. 



2. MAJCOM Unique Contracts can be obtained by contracting with individual MAJCOM contracting officers and participating in their local processes for award of MAJCOM-Unique contracts when requirements are identified. 



3. Respond to Request for Quotations from AFWay as a non-contract vendor (you can register on AFWay to receive a RFQ from the various MAJCOM contracting officers and government purchase card holders). In addition, contractors may also form teaming arrangements with vendors currently selling products on AFWay through MAJCOM Unique contracts or the Air Force Enterprise vehicles issued by HQ SSG


Registration is unique to each command.   It is a local process and registered contractors are only viewable by registering command only.

Q.  Is electronic e-procurement possible thru AFWAY?

A.  Yes

Q.  What determined the number of small business resellers awards to be made?  

A.  The Information Commodity Council relied on market research to determine the number of small business reseller awards to be made.   Moving forward as success of the current strategy is assessed; the Commodity Council reserves the right to change the mixture of firms.

Q.  Please explain the 12% versus 6% small business goals.

Q.  Please explain the 12% small business goal.

A.  The goal is that 6% will be achieved through the AF Quarterly Enterprise Buy process AF BPA holders.  Another 6% will be achieved locally by AF MAJCOMs and DRU/FOA using any small business provider.  12% is an optimistic goal that will be challenging for the Air Force to achieve.

Q.  What does the term OEM mean as it relates to this acquisition?

A.  The term means a contractor must manufacture their own brand of equipment.  For the purposes of the Quarterly Enterprise Buy, small business firms cannot market products from the large business firms who will hold a BPA.  If the buy is other than the Quarterly Enterprise Buys, small business firms may market products for the “big’ four. 

Q.  Will there be a limitation of MAJCOM BPAs?  Some say only 2 will be allowed.

A.  There is no limitation on MAJCOM BPAs.

Q.  What is the AF approach for total cost of ownership?

A.  The total cost of ownership will be addressed at a later date.  Standardization of equipment is the current focus.

Q.  Do you plan to issue a BPA for disposal services only?

A.  Not at this time.

Q.  In establishing 2 small business resellers, do you have a profile of what a small business should look like, scope etc?

A.  To name a few, we are looking for firms who demonstrate financial stability, warehousing capabilities, and ability to manage staggered deliveries.
